
1 

Minutes of the Meeting of 
August 29, 2017 

Board Room, Executive Plaza 
Pine Street, Williamsport 

 
 
Commissioner McKernan - Present 
Commissioner Mussare - Present 
Commissioner Mirabito – Present 
 
Solicitor Smith - Present 
 
 
1.0  OPERATIONS 

 
1.1  CONVENE COMMISSIONERS MEETING.  The meeting was convened at 

10:03 a.m. 
 
Bids were opened for the following: 
 
HDPE Pipe & Landfill Gas Well Accessories (4 bidders) 
 

2.0  ACTION ITEMS 
 
2.1  APPROVE CASH REQUIREMENTS REPORT.  A motion by Mr. Mirabito and 

seconded by Mr. Mussare and passed (3-0), approved accounts payable 
cash requirement report through September 6, 2017, for payment on 
August 30, 2017.  

2.2  APPROVE NUTRIENT SALES AGREEMENT. A motion by Mr. Mirabito and 
seconded by Mr. Mussare and passed (3-0) approved the Nutrient Credit 
Sales Agreement between the County of Lycoming and The Pennsylvania 
Infrastructure Investment Authority.  

2.3 APPROVE AMENDMENT 3 TO THE GEO RE-ENTRY SERVICES CONTRACT. 
After discussion there was no motion to approve Amendment 3 to the GEO 
Re-Entry Services Contract. This item will be placed on Thursday, August 
31, 2017 Agenda. 

 
 
 

August 29, 2017 



2 

2.4 APPROVE THE FOLLOWING PERSONNEL ACTIONS: A motion by Mr. 
Mirabito and seconded by Mr. Mussare and passed (3-0), approved the 
following personnel actions: 

 
District Attorney – Tyler Bierly as PT replacement Special Detective DUI Center at 

$15.64 per hour effective August 1, 2018. 
District Attorney – Angel McLaughlin as PT replacement Special Detective DUI 

Center at $15.64 per hour effective August 1, 2018. 
District Attorney – Kenneth Flewelling as PT replacement Special Detective DUI 

Center at $15.64 per hour effective August 1, 2018. 
 
2.5 APPROVE PERSONNEL ACTIONS REPORT FOR AUGUST 2017: A motion by 

Mr. Mirabito and seconded by Mr. Mussare and passed (3-0) approved the 
August 2017 personnel actions report. 

 
Mr. McKernan recessed the Commissioners’ Meeting at 11:30 a.m. 

 
3.0  SALARY BOARD 

 
3.1  CONVENE SALARY BOARD.  Deputy Controller Collins was present. 
 
3.2  APPROVE DISTRICT ATTORNEY LINHARDT’S MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF 

THREE SPECIAL COUNTY DETECTIVES  - A motion by Mr. Linhardt and 
seconded by Ms. Collins and passed (4-0), approved the three part time 
replacement special detectives for the DUI Center for the period of August 
1, 2017 through December 31, 2018. 

 
3.3  ADJOURN SALARY BOARD. A motion by Mr. Mirabito and seconded by Mr. 

Mussare and passed (3-0), adjourned the Salary Board at 11:45 a.m. 
 

Mr. McKernan reconvened the Commissioners’ Meeting at 11:40 a.m. 
 
 

6.0  COMMISSIONER COMMENT.  The floor was opened to commissioner comment 
and the following were received:  

 
Commissioner Mirabito started by explaining that there should be no rush to enter into 

this agreement with the state. He also explained that Lycoming County is under 
no legal obligation to enter into this agreement.  

 
 

7.0  PUBLIC COMMENT.  The floor was opened to public comment and the following 
were received:  

 
Dick Nassberg – Former Commissioner Nassberg noted that this area has always been a 

caring place where the public is willing to help people.  However, he noted that 
with this decision, we need to balance the economic and human effects of 

August 29, 2017 



3 

expanding GEO services to state parolees. He is concerned with the unintended 
consequences of the decision.  He said that, if we are entering into a transaction 
with a profit making entity, we must negotiate because GEO is motivated to make 
money.  He noted that the County is underwriting the overhead in terms of 
utilities, heat, etc.  With GEO receiving $42 per day per inmate from the State 
and paying the County $5, it is “chump” change.  He also noted that there is an 
incentive for GEO to emphasize the State clients because the money is going 
straight to the bottom line.  He compared bringing state parolees into our Re-
Entry program to the effects of the “influx” of the 80’s and how it caused 
neighborhoods to decline and how these types of programs increase the economic 
burden on taxpayers. In particular, he noted that the people in the program will 
live in low income neighborhoods and the poorest people in our community will 
suffer the most from additional burdens.  He believes the poorest neighborhoods 
will get more drug dealers.  He suggested GEO put the program in Loyalsock or 
Hughesville.  He noted that the Commissioners’ job is to protect all of the 
community.  He noted that we have come a long way in 20 years, and we should 
not go backwards.  

 
Todd Lauer – Jersey Shore – Mr. Lauer read material and gave documents to the 

Commissioners which have been attached to these minutes. 
 
Mayor Campana – The Mayor noted that the city of Williamsport has improved over the 

last 10 years. He credits strong leadership and encouraged the Commissioners to 
consider the long term effects of bringing more individuals with adverse problems 
into our city.  He noted that the City has fought half-way houses and drug rehab 
centers.  He believes that the City does not need any people who have adverse 
problems.  He stated that the City cannot afford additional problems. 

 
Scott Metzger – Montoursville – Mr. Metzger said that he is a County employee with over 

31 years of experience with in Adult Probation.  Mr. Metzger reported that from a 
probation standpoint GEO is a good program that has had success in reducing 
recidivism. He also reported that GEO has invested $100,000 into office space 
renovations that no one has previously noted and feels that the fact that GEO is a 
for profit agency should have no effect in making a decision whether or not to 
proceed. He encouraged the Commissioners to renegotiate the fee from GEO. Mr. 
Metzger explained that when a state parolee violates it usually results in 
incarceration at the Lycoming County Prison and then they are usually 
resentenced to County Probation. He explained that the state parolees who would 
potentially be accepted into the Lycoming County Re-Entry program are already 
living in our community.  

 
Dick Nassberg – Former Commissioner Nassberg noted that “numbers can be played 

with.”  He stated that, if someone is arrested and sentenced here, it does not 
mean they were ever a resident of Lycoming County.  

 
Jennifer Colon – Ms. Colon identified herself as a woman who is in long term recovery.  

She stated that re-entry is “right, we need it,” but she said that the current 

August 29, 2017 



4 

program is missing peer support.  She suggested that many of the people who are 
in recovery and who need jobs could be working in recovery.  She noted that there 
is a huge movement across the country to hire former addicts for recovery. She 
also said that Lycoming County needs to focus more on putting felons back to 
work. She reports that there are programs the focus on that particular topic that 
are successful. 

 
Commissioner Mirabito asked Ms. Colon about the suggestion to hire former addicts 

and noted that he would like to hold hearings with the recovery community to 
hear from them what works and what does not work with recovery. 

 
Bonnie Katz – Ms. Katz is a City of Williamsport Council Member and the owner of a 

business in the downtown.   Ms. Katz stated that she opposes accepting state 
parolee’s to our County’s Re-Entry program. She noted that safety is a concern 
and as a business owner she does not want residents of Lycoming County to be 
afraid to come to the city after dark. She also noted that Williamsport City Police 
will not be able to keep up with the increasing demands if this programming for 
state parolees takes place.  She noted that she would not want to have it come 
back where outsiders come to our community from Pittsburgh and Philadelphia.   

 
Mike Boughton – Mr. Boughton is an employee of GEO.  He explained that these are 

folks who are already living here and reporting to the state parole office on Little 
League Blvd.  He noted that there are 22 people in the program. 

 
Commissioner Mussare then questioned David Smith, Solicitor, if GEO was not 

conducting their business in a county owned property would the county have any 
authority over whether or not GEO entered into this agreement with the state? 

 
Solicitor Smith: No.  
 
Commissioner Mussare then asked whether the County had the right to tell GEO not to 

take State inmates into the program. 
 
Solicitor Smith:  Yes, because it is outside the scope of the current contract. 
 
Commissioner McKernan questioned Mr. Brown from Firetree if Firetree participates in 

programming with state parolees and does Firetree have a program in the 
community like the GEO program? 

 
Mr. Brown from Firetree: Yes. 
 
Commissioner McKernan also reminded the public that the state has “short changed” 

the county already in its percentage of reimbursement to the county for probation 
officers. 

 
 
 

August 29, 2017 



5 

Todd Lauer – Jersey Shore – Mr. Lauer gave his opinion that the program was in the 
best interest of the convict.  But, he asked, what about the public?  He noted that 
the $5 per day per participant is an “outrageous joke” and demeaning to County 
officials.  He said that the only winners were GEO, the State, and the convicts.  
He said that the public loses monetarily and with public safety.  He thinks that 
GEO has become complacent and that, if GEO thought they did not have the 
upper hand, they would negotiate a better deal.  He said that a rate of 65% or 
$27.65 per day is a much better agreement.  He said that, if GEO is not in favor 
of that, let it out to bid or abolish it completely. 

 
John Stahl – Montoursville – Mr. Stahl is a County employee who is assigned to oversee 

the Re-Entry program.  Mr. Stahl noted that in the last two years, Re-entry has 
been a hot topic.  He made the first trip in August 2014 to Luzerne County to 
observe the program run there by GEO.  He noted that the re-entry program herer 
began in September 2014.  He noted that GEO is a vendor and the program is the 
Lycoming County Re-Entry Program.  Mr. Stahl reported that initially Re-Entry 
was all about prison overcrowding. GEO has done exactly what they were 
contracted to do. They have reduced prison overcrowding. There has not been one 
male inmate housed out of county in over a year. Re-Entry currently has 94 
participants in programming.  

 
Ian Perry – Old Lycoming – Mr. Perry noted that Lycoming County is the largest county 

in the State.  He asked whether the state parolees coming into the city from their 
home 5 days per week are from all over the State? 

 
Todd Lauer – Jersey Shore – Mr. Lauer asked what “GEO” stands for? 

 
8.0  NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING.  Mr. McKernan announced the next 

regularly scheduled meeting to be held Thursday, August 31, 2017.  
 

9.0  ADJOURN COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING.  The meeting was adjourned at 11:51 
a.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

August 29, 2017 



6 

ATTACHMENT A 

  
August 29, 2017 



7 

ATTACHMENT B 

 

August 29, 2017 



8 
August 29, 2017 



9 
August 29, 2017 



10 
August 29, 2017 



11 

 
August 29, 2017 



12 

ATTACHMENT C 

 

August 29, 2017 


